
Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400). 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 

Tuesday, March 8, 2016           City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.          16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 
• Annual Update from King County Councilmember Reagan Dunn

PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, not 
the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes per 
speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 

APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  February 9, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes and February 23, 2016 Regular Meeting

Minutes (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson)

PUBLIC HEARING 
1. Receive Public Testimony and Consider Ordinance Extending Interim Zoning Regulations Regarding

Recreational Marijuana (Hart)

NEW BUSINESS 
2. Consider Resolution Adopting Parks, Recreation & Open Space Plan 2016 Update (Feser/Newton)
3. Approve City Manager 2016 Merit Goals (Bolli)

COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 

PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 

EXECUTIVE SESSION – if needed 

ADJOURN 

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/


Consent Agenda Item C-1 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  March 8, 2016  

SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  FEBRUARY 9, 2016 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR 
MEETING MINUTES AND FEBRUARY 23, 2016 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR 
MEETING MINUTES 

RECOMMENDED BY:  Sharon G. Scott, City Clerk 

ATTACHMENT(S):  Proposed Minutes 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 

EXPLANATION:  

ALTERNATIVES:  

FISCAL IMPACT: 

CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  Ordinance   _____ Resolution     X     Motion              Other 

Councilmember __________ moves, Councilmember ___________ 
seconds, to approve the February 9, 2016 City Council Regular 
Meeting Minutes and February 23, 2016 City Council Regular 
Meeting Minutes. 

1 of 47



Unapproved Draft – February 9, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  March 8, 2016 
 
 

1 
 

City of Covington 
Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, February 9, 2016 
 
The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 
Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, February 
9, 2016, at 7:02 p.m., with Mayor Jeff Wagner presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Jeff Wagner, Joe Cimaomo, Margaret Harto, Mark Lanza, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, and Sean 
Smith. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Regan Bolli, City Manager; Don Vondran, Public Works Director; Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel Manager; 
Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director; Andrew McCurdy, Covington Police Chief; Richard Hart, 
Community Development Director; Karla Slate, Communications & Marketing Manager; Ethan 
Newton, Parks & Recreation Director; Sara Springer, City Attorney; and Sharon Scott, City 
Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Mayor Wagner opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Councilmember Scott moved and Councilmember Cimaomo seconded to 
amend the agenda to add New Business Item 4, Authorizing Funds for a Vehicle Purchase.  
Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried.  Councilmember Lanza moved and Councilmember Mhoon 
seconded to approve the Agenda as amended.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION: 

• Tricia Barbachan and Erin Rennie provided a presentation on the King County Metro 
Southeast King County Alternative Services Project including the Tri-City Community 
Van Program. 

 
Councilmembers asked various questions about the program, and Ms. Barbachan and Ms. Rennie 
provided responses.  Community Development Director Richard Hart provided some additional 
information. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Wagner called for public comments. 
 
Jeffery Roeder, Nikki’s Restaurant owner, expressed his concerns over Chick-Fil-A becoming 
his neighbor and advised Council that Chick-Fil-A asked to purchase his parking lot for six months 
which is an easement for the city for emergency vehicles.  He advised that he will protect the 
easement. 
 

2 of 47



Unapproved Draft – February 9, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  March 8, 2016 
 
 

2 
 

Dawn Roeder, Nikki’s Restaurant owner, asked Council to consider the impacts to surrounding 
businesses made by Chick-Fil-A. 
 
Mary Pritchard, Covington resident, provided comments on the King County Metro 
presentation regarding the van program which mentioned use of the Covington Library as a kiosk.  
Mrs. Pritchard advised that the Covington Library is part of the King County Library System which 
would need to be contacted regarding use of its facilities as a kiosk.  Mrs. Pritchard also noted that 
she did not hear the fares for the van program. 
 
Heidi Hansen, KinderCare manager, expressed concern about traffic from Chick-Fil-A. 
 
John Oliver, also expressed concerns about traffic from Chick-Fil-A. 
 
Leroy Stevenson, Covington resident, also expressed concerns about Chick-Fil-A traffic. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Wagner closed the public comment period. 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Vouchers:  Vouchers #33571-33625, including ACH payments in the amount of 

$221,972.22, dated January 22, 2016; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1004818649-
1004818664 inclusive, plus employee direct deposits in the amount of $175,925.54, dated 
January 29, 2016. 
 

C-2. Approve Consultant Contract for Covington Community Park Phase II Design Services. 
 

Council Action:  Councilmember Mhoon moved and Councilmember Cimaomo seconded to 
approve the Consent Agenda.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: 
1.  Receive Public Testimony and Consider Ordinance Extending Moratorium on Medical 
Marijuana Production and Processing Facilities, Dispensaries, and Collective Gardens for Six 
Months. 
 
Community Development Director Richard Hart provided the staff report on this item. 
 
Mayor Wagner called for public comments for the Public Hearing. 
 
There being no comments, Mayor Wagner closed the public comment period for the Public 
Hearing. 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 06-2016 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, WASHINGTON, TO EXTEND THE MORATORIUM 
ON THE ESTABLISHMENT, LOCATION, OPERATION, 

3 of 47



Unapproved Draft – February 9, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  March 8, 2016 
 
 

3 
 

LICENSING, MAINTENANCE, OR CONTINUATION OF 
MEDICAL MARIJUANA DISPENSARIES, PRODUCTION 
FACILITIES, PROCESSING FACILITIES, COLLECTIVE 
GARDENS, AND RELATED BUSINESSES WITHIN THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON UNTIL JULY 1, 2016; PROVIDING FOR A PUBLIC 
HEARING ON THE MORATORIUM; ADOPTING FINDINGS OF 
FACT SUPPORTING THE MORATORIUM ADOPTED BY 
ORDINANCE NOs. 08-11, 12-12, 01-13, 07-13, 05-14, 10-14;  02-15, 
and 06-15, AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY. 

 
Council Action:  Councilmember Scott moved and Councilmember Cimaomo seconded to 
pass Ordinance No. 06-2016, in substantial form as that included in the agenda packet, to 
extend the moratorium on medical marijuana collective gardens, production and processing 
facilities, dispensaries, and related businesses until July 1, 2016.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
2.  Appointments to Parks & Recreation Commission. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Cimaomo moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to 
appoint Laura Morrissey to fill Position No. 5 on the Parks & Recreation Commission with 
a term expiring January 31, 2019.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Harto moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
appoint Justin Reed to fill Position No. 6 on the Parks & Recreation Commission with a term 
expiring January 31, 2019.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Mhoon moved and Mayor Pro Tem Smith seconded to 
appoint Troy McIntyre to fill Position No. 7 on the Parks & Recreation Commission with a 
term expiring January 31, 2019.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
3.  Discuss Commissioner Conduct. 
 
Mayor Wagner gave the report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Parks & Recreation Director Ethan 
Newton, City Attorney Sara Springer, and City Manager Regan Bolli provided responses. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Harto moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to 
remove Paul Selland from the Arts Commission effective immediately.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion 
carried. 
 
4.  Consider Allocation of $69,500 to Purchase a New Parks Maintenance Vehicle. 
 
Public Works Director Don Vondran gave the staff report on this item. 
 

4 of 47



Unapproved Draft – February 9, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  March 8, 2016 
 
 

4 
 

Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Mr. Vondran provided responses. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Cimaomo moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to 
authorize the allocation of $69,500 to be used for city staff to purchase a new parks 
maintenance vehicle.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff discussed Future Agenda Topics and made comments. 
 
Resolutions in support of the Kent School District ballot measure and the Kent Fire Department 
Regional Fire Authority ballot measure were added to the February 23 Council meeting.  Those 
wishing to speak for or against the ballot measures would be able to provide comments at the first 
Public Comment period at that meeting. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Mayor Wagner called for public comments. 
 
Leroy Stevenson, Covington resident, provided comments on the Regional Fire Authority and 
stated that he is paying 35 percent more for fire protection than when under Fire District 37.  Mr. 
Stevenson also noted that his insurance cost did not decrease as was stated by the Kent Fire 
Department Regional Fire Authority. 
 
Mary Pritchard, Covington resident, noted that the Council Strategic Planning Summit on 
Saturday, January 30, was very good for the part she was able to attend, and she wished more of 
the public would attend the summits.  Mrs. Pritchard provided comments in support of the Kent 
Fire Department Regional Fire Authority. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Wagner closed the public comment period. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
To Discuss the Acquisition of Real Estate Pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(b) and to Discuss 
Potential Litigation Pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(l) from 8:58 to 10:12 p.m. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 10:12 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 

5 of 47



Unapproved Draft–February 23, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  March 8, 2016 
 
 

 1 

City of Covington 
Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, February 23, 2016 
 
The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 
Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, February 
23, 2016, at 7:04 p.m., with Mayor Wagner presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Jeff Wagner, Margaret Harto, Mark Lanza, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, and Sean Smith. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS ABSENT: 
Joe Cimaomo. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Regan Bolli, City Manager; Don Vondran, Public Works Director; Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel Manager; 
Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director; Andrew McCurdy, Covington Police Chief; Karla Slate, 
Communications & Marketing Manager; Ethan Newton, Parks & Recreation Director; Sara Springer, 
City Attorney; and Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Scott moved and Councilmember Harto seconded to excuse 
Councilmember Cimaomo.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
Mayor Wagner opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Councilmember Mhoon moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to 
approve the Agenda.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION: 

• Rich Zwicker, Senior Policy Analyst, Washington State Housing Finance Commission, 
gave a presentation on the commission and affordable housing. 

• Arts Commisioners Lesli Cohan and Leslie Spero accepted the Youth Art Month 
Proclamation for March 2016. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Wagner called for public comments. 
 
Eric Bernard, Kent resident, spoke against Agenda Item 2, Resolution in Support of Kent 
Regional Fire Authority’s Proposition 1. 
 
Kimberly Matej, Government Relations Manager for the Kent Regional Fire Authority, also 
spoke regarding Agenda Item 2.  Ms. Matej provided factual information regarding the Kent 
Regional Fire Authority ballot measure and the explanatory statement. 
 

6 of 47



Unapproved Draft–February 23, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  March 8, 2016 
 
 

 2 

Mary Pritchard, Covington resident, spoke regarding an item that was discussed at the recent 
Council Strategic Planning Summit to eliminate commission reports at Council meetings.  Mrs. 
Pritchard requested that Council continue those reports at Council meeting for the public’s benefit.  
Mrs. Pritchard also mentioned that her Kent Regional Fire Authority benefit charge went down by 
$2 from the previous year. 
 
Leroy Stevenson, Covington resident, spoke against Agenda Item 2, Resolution in Support of 
Kent Regional Fire Authority’s Proposition 1. 
 
Brooke Valentine, unincorporated King County resident, Co-Chair Citizens for Kent 
Schools, spoke regarding Agenda Item 1, Resolution in Support of Kent School District’s 
Proposition 1.  Ms. Valentine provided information on the bond measure. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Wagner closed the public comment period. 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Minutes:  January 12, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes; January 26, 2016 Regular Meeting 

Minutes; and January 30, 2016 Strategic Planning Summit Summary. 
 

C-2. Vouchers:  Vouchers #33626-33685, including ACH payments and electronic funds transfers 
in the amount of $289,561.47, dated February 5, 2016; and Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1004869803-1004869816 and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1004869828-1004869828 
inclusive, plus employee direct deposits in the amount of $175,992.01, dated February 12, 
2016. 
 

C-3. Approve Contract Extension with SBS Legal Services for City Attorney Services. 
 

Council Action:  Councilmember Mhoon moved and Councilmember Harto seconded to 
approve the Consent Agenda.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS: 
Human Services Commission – Chair Fran McGregor reported on the February 11 meeting. 
 
Parks & Recreation Commission – Parks & Recreation Director Ethan Newton reported on the 
February 17 meeting. 
 
Planning Commission – Chair Bill Judd reported on the February 18 meeting; February 4 meeting 
canceled. 
 
Arts Commission – Chair Lesli Cohan reported on the January 30 special meeting and the 
February 11 regular meeting. 
 
Parks & Recreation Priorities Advisory Committee – Parks & Recreation Director Ethan 
Newton reported on the January 27 meeting. 
 

7 of 47



Unapproved Draft–February 23, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  March 8, 2016 
 
 

 3 

Economic Development Council – Co-Chair Jeff Wagner reported on the January 28 open house. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
1.  Consider Resolution in Support of Kent School District’s Proposition 1. 
 
City Manager Regan Bolli gave the staff report for this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments in support of the resolution. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-01 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, WASHINGTON, STATING THE CITY 
COUNCIL’S SUPPORT OF KENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PROPOSITION 1 ON THE APRIL 26, 2016, SPECIAL ELECTION 
BALLOT 

 
Council Action:  Councilmember Lanza moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
adopt Resolution No. 2016-01 stating the City Council’s support of Kent School District 
Proposition 1 on the April 26, 2016 special election ballot, in substantial form as that 
provided in the agenda packet.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
2.  Consider Resolution in Support of Kent Regional Fire Authority’s Proposition 1. 
 
City Manager Regan Bolli gave the staff report for this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments in support of the resolution. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-02 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, WASHINGTON, STATING THE CITY 
COUNCIL’S SUPPORT OF KENT FIRE DEPARTMENT 
REGIONAL FIRE AUTHORITY’S PROPOSITION 1 ON THE 
APRIL 26, 2016, SPECIAL ELECTION BALLOT 

 
Council Action:  Councilmember Harto moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
adopt Resolution No. 2016-02 stating the city council’s support of Kent Fire Department 
Regional Fire Authority Proposition 1 on the April 26, 2016 special election ballot, in 
substantial form as that provided in the agenda packet.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff discussed Future Agenda Topics and made comments. 
 
 

8 of 47



Unapproved Draft–February 23, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  March 8, 2016 
 
 

 4 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Mayor Wagner called for public comments. 
 
Mary Pritchard, Covington resident, inquired as to what type of fundraising efforts and outreach 
the city was performing for the Seahorse.  Mrs. Pritchard also provided comments on the Regional 
Fire Authority’s advisory position and indicated she felt it should be a voting position.  Mrs. 
Pritchard further provided comments on the Covington Library, indicating that it usually ranked 
in the top three of the busiest libraries in the King County Library System, and she wanted others 
to know she felt safe using the library. 
 
Juliet Perry, Covington resident, expressed her pleasure with Council’s support of the Kent 
School District’s bond measure.  Ms. Perry also invited everyone to attend a kickoff rally on March 
2, 5:30 p.m., at Kent Meridian High School gymnasium, and she provided explanatory flyers on 
the bond measure. 
 
Fran McGregor Covington resident, thanked Mary Pritchard for her comments regarding 
commissioner reports at Council meetings, and noted she was in favor of keeping the reports on 
the agenda also. 
 
Leroy Stevenson, Covington resident, spoke regarding the authorization to purchase a truck from 
the previous Council agenda.  Mr. Stevenson voiced his opinion that a used truck might have been 
purchased to keep costs down instead of a new truck and voiced his opinion on diesel engines.  
Mr. Stevenson also spoke against the Kent Regional Fire Authority’s ballot measure. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Wagner closed the public comment period. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
To discuss potential litigation pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(i) from 8:30 to 9:27 p.m. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 9:27 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 
 

9 of 47



Consent Agenda Item C-2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  March 8, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS  
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  Vouchers:  Vouchers #33686-33751, including ACH payments and 
electronic funds transfers in the amount of $162,096.32, dated February 19, 2016; and 
Paylocity Payroll Checks #1004929058-1004929073 inclusive, plus employee direct deposits 
in the amount of $180,880.45, dated February 26, 2016. 
 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment Vouchers #33686-33751, including ACH 
payments and electronic funds transfers in the amount of $162,096.32, dated 
February 19, 2016; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1004929058-1004929073 
inclusive, plus employee direct deposits in the amount of $180,880.45, dated 
February 26, 2016. 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

 

10 of 47



11 of 47



12 of 47



13 of 47



14 of 47



15 of 47



16 of 47



17 of 47



18 of 47



19 of 47



20 of 47



21 of 47



22 of 47



23 of 47



24 of 47



25 of 47



 
 

Agenda Item 1 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: March 8, 2016 

 
SUBJECT:  RECEIVE TESTIMONY FROM THE PUBLIC AND CONSIDER SIX-MONTH 

EXTENSION OF INTERIM ZONING REGULATIONS REGARDING 
RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA.    

 
RECOMMENDED BY: Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
 Sara Springer, City Attorney 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Proposed ordinance extending interim zoning regulations for recreational marijuana 
production, processing, and retail uses for six months. 

2. Interim Zoning Map with 1000 ft. Sensitive Area Buffers 
 

PREPARED BY:  Sara Springer, City Attorney 
 
EXPLANATION: 
 
The purpose of this agenda bill action is to hold a public hearing to allow public testimony and 
take action extending the interim zoning regulations for recreational marijuana production, 
processing, and retail uses until July 1, 2016, unless earlier terminated.  
 
A. Interim Zoning History 
On November 12, 2013, the council passed interim zoning regulations for recreational marijuana 
production, processing, and retail uses for an initial six-month period. The council subsequently 
adopted amended interim regulations on April 22, 2014, and renewed those amended regulations 
in September 2014, April 2015, and October 2015. This item is being brought back for the 
council to hold a public hearing, pursuant to Chapter 35A.63.220 of the Revised Code of 
Washington, to extend the currently adopted interim zoning regulations for recreational 
marijuana until July 1, 2016, unless earlier terminated.  
 
B. New State Marijuana Regulations (Both Medical and Recreational) 
As previously briefed to council, in an effort to consolidate the state’s recreational and medical 
marijuana regulatory schemes, in April 2015 the state legislature passed SSSB 5052, the 
Cannabis Patient Protection Act (the “Act”), and Governor Inslee signed it into law, with partial 
vetoes. In July 2015, the state legislature and governor also passed and signed into law SHB 
2136, which amended portions of SB 5052.  
 
As a general overview, the Act:  
 

• Establishes the state Liquor Control Board as the regulatory agency overseeing medical 
marijuana and renames the board the Liquor and Cannabis Board (LCB); 
 

26 of 47



 
 

• Provides guidance for rules and regulation of medical marijuana, which will be regulated 
through the recreational marijuana regulatory structure; 
 

• Requires marijuana retail businesses to apply for a medical marijuana endorsement 
through the LCB if they desire to sell medical marijuana in addition to recreational 
marijuana. Accordingly, the LCB reopened the license period for retail stores to allow for 
additional licenses to be issued to address the needs of the medical market; 
 

• Repeals medical marijuana collective gardens, replacing them with medical marijuana 
personal grows and cooperatives. Qualified patients may grow up to fifteen plants in their 
home. Up to four qualifying patients or designated providers may form a medical 
marijuana cooperative, which is permitted to grow up to sixty plants at a cooperative 
location; and 
 

• Gives authority to cities, towns, counties, and other municipalities to create and enforce 
civil penalties for the growing or processing of marijuana and for keeping marijuana 
plants beyond or otherwise not in compliance with the rules and regulations of 
cooperatives. 
 

Portions of the Act were enacted as of July 1, 2015, and the remaining portions of the Act will go 
into effect as of July 1, 2016—notably, non-state-licensed marijuana establishments and current 
recreational marijuana businesses will be required to obtain a state endorsement if offering 
medical marijuana and collective gardens will no longer be legal.   
 
The central take-away from this new legislation is that as of July 1, 2016, all marijuana 
uses will be regulated jointly by the LCB under the same regulatory scheme. In response to 
the changes in state law regarding medical marijuana, the LCB has changed their regulations and 
policies regarding the issuance of licenses for retail marijuana businesses. Cities across the state 
received notification last fall from the LCB of certain changes to their marijuana licensing 
policies, and staff anticipate additional changes in the LCB’s regulations and policies for 
marijuana businesses.  
 
C. Status of Permanent Regulations 
At the November 24, 2015, regular council meeting, staff presented to council detailed 
information regarding the new legislation passed by the state legislature in 2015, and the council 
made specific policy decisions to direct staff’s development of permanent marijuana regulations 
for the city (inclusive of both recreational and medical marijuana uses). Staff will be completing 
the draft permanent regulations by April 2016, after which time staff will present the proposed 
permanent regulations to the planning commission for their review and recommendations. Staff 
will then forward the proposed permanent regulations to the state Department of Commerce for 
their review and comment. Staff with then bring the proposed permanent regulations back to the 
council for a public hearing and final adoption before all provisions of the new state laws go into 
effect on July 1, 2016.  
 
*Please note that the LCB does not consider local land use regulations when reviewing 
applications they receive for state marijuana licenses. Therefore, though state applicants will not 

27 of 47



 
 

have surety of what the city’s permanent regulations will be until July 2016, because the LCB 
does not review compliance with local regulations, individuals are still able to submit a state 
license application to the LCB at this time even if their proposed businesses location or use is not 
currently allowed by the city’s interim regulations (in that instance, the state applicant would be 
speculatively submitting their state licensing application to the LCB in hopes that the city will 
adopt permanent regulations that will allow said use). Again, there will be opportunities for 
public comment and testimony on the city’s proposed permanent marijuana regulations when 
reviewed by the planning commission and council, respectively.  
 
D. Recommendation on Extension of interim Zoning Until July 1, 2016 
It is necessary for council to extend the current interim zoning regulations for recreational 
marijuana uses until July 1, 2016, to allow for the above noted consideration and adoption of 
permanent regulations.   
 
A proposed ordinance to extend the current interim zoning regulations is attached for the 
council’s review and consideration. (Attachment 1) City staff will continue to monitor the ever 
evolving regulatory, policy, and land use considerations surrounding recreational marijuana to 
inform the drafting of permanent recreational marijuana regulations.   
 
ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Amend the current interim zoning regulations for recreational marijuana production, 
processing, and retail facilities. No requests or need for amendments to the current 
interim zoning regulations have arisen since last fall. Accordingly, as permanent 
regulations are forthcoming for review and adoption within the next few months, staff 
does not recommend making any amendments to the interim zoning at this time. 
 

2. Do not pass the proposed ordinance to renew the interim zoning regulations. Staff does 
not recommend this option, as upon expiration of the previous interim zoning ordinance, 
it would leave the city without any regulation of recreational marijuana production, 
processing, and retail facilities until the permanent regulations are adopted by July 1, 
2016.  

 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
Staff time to respond to inquiries and review and permit proposed facilities. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:     X    Ordinance         Resolution         Motion         Other 

 
Councilmember _________________ moves, and councilmember 
____________ seconds, to pass an ordinance, in substantial form as that 
presented, to extend the city’s interim zoning regulations for recreational 
marijuana production, processing, and retail uses until July 1, 2016. 
 

REVIEWED BY: City Manager; City Attorney; Community Development Director  

28 of 47



ORDINANCE NO. 07-2016 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, WASHINGTON, AMENDING 
ORDINANCE NO. 09-15 TO EXTEND THE INTERIM 
ZONING REGULATIONS FOR RECREATIONAL 
MARIJUANA PRODUCTION, PROCESSING, AND RETAIL 
USES UNTIL JULY 1, 2016; PROVIDING FOR A PUBLIC 
HEARING ON THE EXTENSION; ADOPTING FINDINGS 
OF FACT; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, Initiative 502, passed by Washington voters on November 6, 2012, and 
codified in Chapter 69.50 of the Revised Code of Washington (RCW), modified the State 
Controlled Substances Act to allow the possession of recreational marijuana for private and 
personal use and established a system for lawful production, processing, and retailing of 
recreational marijuana under state law; and 

WHEREAS, in 2013 and 2014 the Washington State Liquor Control Board (LCB) 
developed rules and regulations related to the licensing and location of recreational marijuana 
production, processing, and retailing uses as allowed under the Initiative, and began accepting 
applications and issuing licenses for recreational marijuana businesses; and 

WHEREAS, in April 2015 the state legislature passed, and the governor signed into law, 
SB 5052, the Cannabis Patient Protection Act (the “Act”); and 

WHEREAS, the Act establishes the state LCB, now Liquor and Cannabis Board, as the 
oversight body for all marijuana uses, both recreational and medical, provides guidance and rules 
for the regulation and licensing of medical marijuana, eliminates collective gardens to be replaced 
with medical marijuana collectives and personal grows, and requires special endorsements for 
marijuana retailers wishing to sell medical marijuana in addition to recreational marijuana; and 

WHEREAS, the significant portions of the Act that affect the city’s zoning and licensing 
regulations does not go into effect until July 1, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, on January 16, 2014, the Washington State Attorney General issued a formal 
opinion which concluded that I-502 does not prevent local governments from regulating or banning 
marijuana businesses; and  

WHEREAS, the LCB will not consider local zoning regulations in deciding whether to 
issue licenses for marijuana producers, processors, and retailers, but those businesses are required 
to comply with local zoning regulations and controls; and 

WHEREAS, RCW 35A.63.220 and RCW 36.70A.390 authorize the city to adopt interim 
land use regulations and official controls; and 

ATTACHMENT 1

29 of 47



WHEREAS, on November 12, 2013, the city council adopted Ordinance No. 10-13, which 
declared an emergency necessitating the immediate adoption of interim zoning regulations for 
recreational marijuana production, processing, and retail uses for an initial six-month period, 
which regulations were subsequently amended by Ordinance No. 06-14 and subsequently renewed 
by Ordinance Nos. 12-14, 03-15; and 09-15and 

 
WHEREAS, unless the City extends the interim zoning regulations for recreational 

marijuana uses, such uses may be able to locate in the City without regulation and thereby have 
adverse impacts on the City and its citizens; and 

 
WHEREAS, city staff intends to present proposed permanent local regulations for 

marijuana businesses for adoption by July 1. 2016, and said proposed permanent regulations will 
be informed by state law, LCB regulations and policies, and case law; and 

 
WHEREAS, on March 8, 2016, the city council conducted a public hearing, providing an 

opportunity for the public to comment on the interim zoning regulations set forth in this ordinance 
prior to their extension and the council has weighed the testimony received; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to WAC 197-11-800(19), the adoption of this ordinance is exempt 

from environmental review under the State Environmental Policy Act; and 
 
WHEREAS, based on the public testimony received on March 8, 2016, and materials 

provided by city staff, the council deems it in the public interest to extend the current interim 
zoning regulations for recreational marijuana production, processing, and retail uses until July 1, 
2016, to allow staff to prepare permanent regulations for the council’s consideration and adoption; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, nothing in this ordinance is intended nor shall be construed to authorize or 

approve of any violation of federal or state law; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, 

WASHINGTON, DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. Findings of Fact. In accordance with RCW 35A.63.220 and RCW 36.70A.390, 
which require the city council to adopt findings of fact justifying the adoption of interim zoning 
regulations, the “WHEREAS” clauses set forth above are hereby adopted as the city council’s 
findings of fact in support of the interim zoning regulations imposed by this ordinance and are 
fully incorporated herein by this reference. The city council may adopt additional findings in the 
event that additional evidence is presented to the city council.   

 
Section 2. Extension of Interim Zoning Regulations. The six-month interim zoning 

regulations established by Ordinance No. 09-15 shall not lapse and shall be extended to be effective 
until July 1, 2016, unless earlier terminated. 

 
Section 3. No Non-Confirming Uses. No use that constitutes or purports to be a marijuana 

producer, marijuana processor, or marijuana retailer, as those terms are defined in the ordinances 
referenced in Section 2 herein, that was engaged in that activity upon expiration of any prior 
interim zoning regulations and prior to the enactment of this ordinance shall be deemed to have 
been a legally established use under the provisions of the Covington Municipal Code and that use 
shall not be entitled to claim legal non-confirming use status.  

 

30 of 47



Section 4. Severability. Should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of this 
ordinance, or its application to any person or circumstance, be declared unconstitutional or 
otherwise invalid for any reason, or should any portion of this ordinance be pre-empted by state or 
federal law or regulation, such decision or preemption shall not affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of this ordinance or its application to other persons or circumstances. 

 
Section 5. Corrections. Upon the approval of the city attorney, the city clerk is authorized 

to make any necessary technical corrections to this ordinance including, but not limited to, the 
correction of scrivener’s/clerical errors, references, ordinance numbering, section/subsection 
numbers, and any reference thereto.  

 
Section 6. Effective Date. This ordinance shall be published in the official newspaper of 

the city and shall take full force and effect five (5) days after the date of publication. 
 
 
PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, 

WASHINGTON, at a regular meeting thereof on the 8th day of March, 2016, and signed in 
authentication of its passage.  
 

      
Mayor Jeff Wagner 
 
PUBLISHED:   March 11, 2016 
EFFECTIVE:    March 16, 2016 

ATTESTED: 
 
      
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: 
 
      
Sara Springer, City Attorney 

31 of 47



I

R-4

TC

R-8

MC

GC

R-6

MHO

US(R-1)

R-18

.

1 inch = 400 feetCity of Covington: Zoning Information

Created By: Shawn Buck 10/11/2013

Community Commercial

General Commercial

High Density Residential 8du/ac

Industrial

Low Density Residential 4du/ac

Med Density Residential 6du/ac

Mineral

Mixed Commercial

Neighborhood Commercial

Urban Seperator

City Limits

Downtown Boundary

Multifamily Residential 18du/ac ~18 Acres

Mixed Housing/Office ~60 Acres

Town Center ~73 Acres

O:\Covington_GIS_Library\PROJECT_FOLDER\Community_Development\One_Time_Use_Projects\2013\I-502_Map\i_502_map.mxd

I-502 Buffer Information
1000' Buffer

Local Schools

Covington Parks

Park and Ride

Library

Child Care Facility

Religious Facilities

ATTACHMENT 2

32 of 47



Agenda Item 2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: March 8, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  CONSIDER ADOPTION OF THE 2016 UPDATE OF THE PARKS, 

RECREATION AND OPEN SPACE PLAN 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Ethan Newton, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. 2016 PROS Plan Executive Summary 
2. Errata Sheet From Previously Circulated Draft Plan  
3. Resolution Adopting the 2016 Update of the Parks, Recreation, and Open Space Plan for 

the City of Covington 
 
PREPARED BY:  Angie Feser, Parks Planner 
 
EXPLANATION: 
The purpose of this agenda item is for the council to consider adoption of the Parks, Recreation 
and Open Space (PROS) Plan Update (the “Plan”).  Comments received to date have been 
incorporated into the Plan.  The Executive Summary of the Plan is included as Attachment 1, in 
addition to an errata sheet containing edits since the final draft of the Plan was presented to 
council on January 12, 2016 (Attachment 2).  The complete Plan is available at city hall and on 
the city’s website. 
 
The Plan is essential for operating and improving Covington’s system of recreation programs 
and parks.  The Plan provides important information about the programs and parks the 
community needs and uses, guides the allocation of time and funding toward the most important 
priorities, and makes the city eligible to receive grants from the state Recreation and 
Conservation Office (RCO).  While the Plan provides guidance, it is not legally binding.  Official 
policies that bind the city and developers to take certain actions are found in the Parks, 
Recreation and Open Space Element of the 2015-2035 Comprehensive Plan, adopted by the 
council on January 12, 2016.  Adoption of this Plan will prompt a subsequent amendment to the 
city’s 2015-2035 Comprehensive Plan, which is scheduled for later this year. 
 
Since early last year, the city has engaged Covington residents and businesses through 
meaningful public outreach including mail and on-line surveys; stakeholder meetings with teens, 
business owners, program participants and non-participants; two public open houses; four 
presentations to and one work session with the parks and recreation commission; a presentation 
to the planning commission; three council presentations as well as SEPA review.  The consultant 
team also conducted an analysis of our community’s recreation needs and the results provide 
recommended direction for the city’s programming expansion.  This outreach, recreation 
analysis, extensive information about the current parks and facilities conditions provide a 
valuable tool to directing recreation and park system improvements and expansion in the years to 
come.  
 

33 of 47



Upon adoption by the council, the Plan will be printed and mailed to the RCO by February 29th 
to meet their grant eligibility deadline.  The Plan will be available to city council and 
commission members and distributed to various public locations, such as the Covington Library, 
Covington Aquatic Center and city hall. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Direct staff to make changes and return the Plan for adoption at the March 22nd regular 
meeting. 

2. Decline adoption of the Plan. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT:   
This Plan provides guidance and has no fiscal impact itself.  Individual parks and recreation 
programs and capital improvement projects are approved through work plans, the operating 
budget, and capital budget.   
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance     X   Resolution        Motion         Other 

 
Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to adopt the resolution, insubstantial form as that attached hereto, 
to adopt the 2016 Update of the City of Covington Parks, Recreation and 
Open Space Plan. 
  

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director, Community Development 
Director 
 

34 of 47



Parks, Recreation & Open Space Plan
2016 Update

ATTACHMENT 1

35 of 47



Covington Parks, Recreation & Open Space Plan | 2016 v

Executive Summary

This Parks, Recreation and Open Space (PROS) Plan is a six-year guide and strategic plan 

for managing and enhancing park, trail and recreation services in Covington. It establishes 

a path forward for providing high quality, community-driven parks, trails, greenspaces and 

recreational opportunities. This Plan provides a vision for the City’s park and recreation 

system, proposes updates to City service standards for park and facility classifications and 

addresses departmental goals, objectives and other management considerations toward the 

continuation of  high-quality recreation opportunities to benefit residents of  Covington. 

This Plan was guided with input and direction of  city residents and the Parks and Recreation 

Commission. The Plan inventories and evaluates existing park and recreation areas, 

assesses the needs for acquisition, site development and operations and offers policies and 

recommendations to achieve the community’s goals. 

Covington’s Park & Recreation System
The City of  Covington currently provides over 166 acres of  public parkland and recreation 

facilities distributed among 25 parks, special facilities and natural areas. This system of  parks 

supports a range of  active and passive recreation experiences and is supplemented by over 125 

36 of 47



vi

acres of  private parks and open spaces managed by a number of  homeowners associations. In 

addition, the City provides a skate park and access to approximately 7 miles of  trails within its 

parks and greenways. 

Recreation services are available to Covington residents through a wide range of  public and 

private recreation, health and fitness providers and facilities. The Covington Aquatic Center 

is the backbone of  the City’s recreation programming, and it provides a venue for specialized 

aquatics programming, activities and events. 

Covington is a maturing young city with many families with children. New investments in 

parks and recreation will be necessary to meet the needs of  the community, support youth 

development, provide options for residents to lead healthy, active lives and foster greater 

social and community connections.

Goals & Policies
This Plan includes goals and objectives intended to guide City decision-making to ensure 

the parks and recreation system meets the needs of  the Covington community for years to 

come. These goals and objectives were based on community input and technical analysis. They 

include:

Community Engagement and Communication: Encourage meaningful public 

involvement in park and recreation planning and inform residents through department 

communications. 

Recreation Programming: Establish a varied and inclusive suite of  recreation programs 

that accommodate a spectrum of  ages, interests and abilities. 

Parks, Recreation, Open Space and Trail System: Acquire and develop a high-quality, 

diversified system of  parks, recreation facilities, open spaces and trails that is attractive, 

functional, accessible, and safe – providing equitable access to all residents. 

Natural Areas and Greenspaces: Protect and manage the City’s environmentally-sensitive 

lands, open spaces and natural and cultural resources to highlight their uniqueness, 

local history and environmental value

Trails and Pathways: Develop a high-quality system of  multi-use trails and bicycle and 

pedestrian corridors that connects to regional trails and provides access to significant 

local landscapes, public facilities, neighborhoods, and businesses.

Park Planning: Plan for a parks, recreation facilities, trails, and open space system that is 

efficient to administer and operate, while protecting capital investment.

Level of Service Standards 
As an update to the 2010 PROS Plan, this Plan assessed the City’s service standards for 

parks and recreation facilities to achieve community goals within projected resources. These 

standards include: 

Community Parks: This Plan maintains the acreage standard for community parks 

of  5 acres per 1,000 people to continue to emphasize the relative importance of  active 

■

37 of 47



Covington Parks, Recreation & Open Space Plan | 2016 vii

parks within the park system. The City currently is not meeting this standard, and it 

will need to acquire an additional 56 acres of  parkland to meet the needs of  future 

residents. 

Neighborhood Parks: This Plan maintains the acreage standard for neighborhood 

parks of  3 acres per 1,000 people, and the combined acreage of  existing City-owned 

and HOA parks nearly meet that standard. With projected growth in residential 

development and with a significant reliance on HOA sites filling the need for 

neighborhood parks, the City should be able to meet this standard in the near future. 

However, significant gaps appear in the west-central and eastern areas of  the City that 

are not served by HOA parks.

Natural Areas and Greenspaces: This Plan also maintains the service standard of  6 

acres per 1,000 people for natural areas and greenspaces. With City-owned and HOA 

open spaces, this standard is currently being met. 

Trails & Linkages: This Plan maintains the service standard of  0.75 miles per 1,000 

people for recreational trails and for bikeways. Using this standard, the current level 

of  service indicates a current deficiency of  over 6 miles for recreational trails and 

nearly 9 miles of  bikeways, which will increase with the population without further 

improvements. 

Specialized Recreation Facilities: The previous PROS Plan did not include a 

numeric standard for special use facilities, and this Plan maintains that approach. 

Special use recreation facilities are, by their nature, unique and do not translate well to 

a population based numeric standard. 

Future Improvements
The City of  Covington is anticipated to grow to approximately 21,200 residents over the next 

six years. Serving existing and future residents will require improvements to existing parks and 

expansion of  the park, trail and recreation system. The 6-year Capital Facilities Plan proposes 

approximately $43.8 million of  investment in acquisition, development and renovation of  

the parks system over the next six years and identifies additional investment priorities for the 

future. 

To ensure existing parks provide desired recreational amenities and opportunities, the Plan 

includes investments in the development and improvement of  neighborhood and community 

parks. For example, development of  the next phases of  the Covington Community Park will 

greatly expand recreational resources for the community as a whole. The Plan also proposes 

smaller improvements throughout the park system to enhance accessibility, safety and usability 

of  park features.

The Plan includes a focused land acquisition program to ensure sufficient land and trail 

corridors for outdoor recreation as City population grows. It identifies target acquisition areas 

to secure community parkland and fill gaps in neighborhood park access and to close gaps in 

the trail network.

■

■

■

■

38 of 47



Covington Parks, Recreation & Open Space (PROS) Plan
Errata from previously circulated draft Plan

Page No.   Comment / Issue   Correction Inserted

i Fix mayor and mayor pro tem titles Corrected for the recent elections

vii What about the LOS for Trails(city owned 

only?) and Bikeways? 

Added new bullet to call out service standard for trails

10 Clarify version of Comp Plan that was reviewed Added language to specify that the draft 2015 Comp Plan 

was reviewed as a part of the PROS Plan development. The 

final Comp Plan was not adopted until after this PROS Plan 

was prepared.

39 Move discussion of "Community Parks" to 

appear before that of "Neighborhood Parks"

Moved Community Park section to page 24 and re‐

numbered maps 1‐5

70 Correct wording in Figure 16 to reference 

"miles" instead of "acres"

Amending table wording

73 Correct wording in Figure 17 to reference 

"miles" instead of "acres"

Amending table wording

73 Clarify trail mileage of Soos Creek Trail within 

city limits

Added content to specify that 1.95 miles of Soos Creek Trail 

is within city limits

88 Remove service standard for open space from 

Objective 3.1 and move to Goal 4

Moved content and inserted as a new Objective 4.1 and 

renumbered sequence to follow

90 Change policy title Changed policy title from "Trails & Pathways" to "Trails & 

Linkages" for internal consistency within the Plan

90 Add trails service standard to objectives Inserted service standard objective as new Objective 5.1 and 

renumbered sequence to follow

95 Remove "Draft" from CFP Removed "draft" label

95 Delete line item: Revolving Repair & 

Maintenance

Removed line item

99 Removed planned Soos Creek Trail segment 

from Muckleshoot tribal land

On Map 9, added new legend item for Muckleshoot Tribal 

Land and re‐oriented the proposed trail around tribal land 

and onto existing county‐owned land

ATTACHMENT 2

39 of 47



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-03 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, 
ADOPTING THE 2016 UPDATE OF THE PARKS, 
RECREATION, AND OPEN SPACE PLAN FOR THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON. 

WHEREAS, the Covington Parks and Recreation Department (the “Parks Department”), 
together with consultants, has conducted an in-depth study and review of the City of Covington’s 
(the “City”) programs, policies, and planning for parks, recreation, and open space; and 

WHEREAS, since early 2015, the Parks Department has engaged Covington residents and 
businesses through meaningful public outreach, including mail and on-line surveys, stakeholder 
meetings with teens, business owners, program participants and non-participants, two public open 
houses, four presentations to and one work session with the Covington Parks and Recreation 
Commission, a presentation to the Covington Planning Commission, and three presentations to 
Covington City Council; and  

WHEREAS, on the basis of the above outreach and further study and review, and in 
collaboration with consultants, Parks Department staff have completed the 2016 update to the 
city’s Parks, Recreation, and Open Space Plan (“2016 PROS Plan”); and 

WHEREAS, the updated 2016 PROS Plan provides a vision for the city’s parks and 
recreation system and provides important information about the programs and parks the 
community needs and uses, guides the allocation of time and funding toward the most important 
priorities, and addresses goals, objectives, and other management considerations for the provision 
of high quality recreation opportunities to benefit residents and visitors to Covington; and 

WHEREAS, the Covington City Council has reviewed the 2016 PROS Plan and finds it 
consistent with and in aid of the Parks, Recreation, and Open Space Element of the 2015-2035 
Covington Comprehensive Plan, adopted on January 12, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, certain portions of the Parks, Recreation, and Open Space Element of the 
2015-2035 Covington Comprehensive Plan will be amended during the annual regular 
comprehensive plan amendment process later in 2016; and 

WHEREAS, the updated 2016 PROS Plan has been considered by the city council in open 
public meeting; and  

ATTACHMENT 3

40 of 47



WHEREAS, a SEPA Determination of Non-Significance was issued on February 12, 
2016, for the adoption of the 2016 PROS Plan; 

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Covington as 
follows: 

Section 1. 2016 PROS Plan Adopted. The document entitled “Parks, Recreation and Open 
Space Plan—2016 Update” dated March 2016, as prepared by the Covington Parks and Recreation 
Department and as recommended by the same and the Covington Parks and Recreation 
Commission, is hereby adopted.  

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Covington, Washington, in open and regular 
session this 8th day of March, 2016, and signed in authentication of its adoption. 

         CITY OF COVINGTON 

_____________________________________          
Mayor Jeff Wagner 

ATTESTED: 

_____________________________________ 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: 

_____________________________________ 
Sara Springer, City Attorney 

41 of 47



Agenda Item 3
 Covington City Council 

Meeting Date:  March 8, 2016 

SUBJECT:   APPROVE CITY MANAGER MERIT GOALS FOR 2016. 

RECOMMENDED BY:  City Council 

ATTACHMENT (S): 
1. Regan Bolli’s Memo to Noreen Beaufrere for the City Council, “City Manager

2016 Merit Goals,” dated February 23, 2016

PREPARED BY:  Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel Manager 

EXPLANATION:  
Compensation Program Procedure No. HR-16.1 is a comprehensive procedure documenting 
the processes the city uses to compensate its employees.  It was included in Revision 3 of 
the city’s Employee Handbook that was adopted by the city council on September 11, 2012 
per Resolution No. 12-09.  One of those processes outlined in the procedure is a Merit 
Award Program that issues individual employee merit awards in the form of merit floating 
holiday hours based on the employee’s percent of achievement of pre-established annual 
merit goals.   

Attachment 1 lists City Manager Regan Bolli’s six (6) 2016 merit goals proposed for the 
city council’s consideration.  These proposed goals were based on the priorities expressed 
by the city council at their January 30, 2016 Council Summit Meeting.  The council needs 
to choose three (3) of those goals to become the city manager’s pre-established goals for 
2016.  The goals do not need to be prioritized or weighted.  The percent of achievement of 
these pre-established goals will be determined during the city manager’s 2016 employee 
evaluation process at the beginning of 2017. 

ALTERNATIVES: 
1. Alter the proposed 2016 Merit Award Goals for the city manager.
2. Choose different 2016 Merit Award Goals for the city manager.

FISCAL IMPACT: 
Fiscal impact will occur if and when the city manager’s employment with the city 
terminates, and only if the city manager has an outstanding allowable balance of merit 
award hours which, according to city procedure, cannot exceed 64 hours. 

CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  ____ Ordinance   ____ Resolution      X   Motion   Other 

Councilmember __________ moves and Councilmember ___________ 
seconds, to approve the 2016 Merit Goals for the City Manager. 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, Finance Director

42 of 47



 

 
 

Memo 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 

 
To:  Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel Manager 

For:    City Council  
From: Regan Bolli, City Manager 

Date:   February 23, 2016   
Re:        City Manager 2016 Merit Goals   

The City Council needs to establish three (3) 2016 city manager merit goals.  The following options were 
drawn from discussions at the 2016 summit as well as current ongoing projects. I have reviewed these 
merit goals with the management team and have tried to best encapsulate direction given at the 
summit and management team comments/suggestions.  I am happy to develop additional options at 
your request.    
 

• Create a Youth City Council (YCC) and recruit adult supervisors for the YCC. 
 

• Develop a proposed process for the creation of a citywide strategic plan, including a 
timeline for producing the initial plan and means for obtaining input from council and 
commissions.   

 
• Work with neighborhood organizations (HOA’s) to help facilitate more block watch groups 

operating throughout the city and work with schools, businesses, and service clubs to 
offer educational opportunities to learn about what they can do to help prevent crimes 
and increase awareness.       

 
• Facilitate the student exchange element of our sister city relationship.   

 
• Homelessness: a) presentation/discussion at the 2016 tri-cities meeting; b)attend regional 

conferences dealing with homelessness; and c) engage the faith community and school 
district in our efforts, as well.   

 
• Town Center: a) determine if and when the School District will put the property on the 

market; b) prepare a resolution for the City Council to endorse the bond measure that the 
School District will place on the ballot; c) obtain Panattoni’s confirmation of its interest in 
and intention to purchase the school property; d) prepare a Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) with Panattoni; and e) organize a Council “listening session” at 
Kentwood High School. 

 
Please select three that you feel best meet the city’s priorities and vision.  Thank you for your diligent 
service and positive vision.   
 

43 of 47



  
Covington City Council Meeting 

           Date:  March 8, 2016 

 
 

DISCUSSION OF  
FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 

 
 

6:00 p.m., Tuesday, March 22, 2016 
 Special Meeting – Study Session 

 
7:00 p.m., Tuesday, March 22, 2016 

 Regular Meeting 
 
 

(Draft Agendas Attached) 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

44 of 47



 
 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 

CITY COUNCIL STUDY SESSION 
Council Chambers – 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
 

Tuesday, March 22, 2016 – 6:00 p.m. 
                                                                         
GENERAL INFORMATION: 
The study session is an informal meeting involving discussion between and among the City Council, 
Commissioners, and city staff regarding policy issues.  Study sessions may involve presentations, 
feedback, brainstorming, etc., regarding further work to be done by the staff on key policy matters. 
 
CALL CITY COUNCIL STUDY SESSION TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL 
  
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
ITEM(S) FOR DISCUSSION 
1. Sign Code Policies (Hart) 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, 
not the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes 
per speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400). 
 

*Note* A Regular Council meeting will follow at approximately 7:00 p.m. 

Draft 
as of 3/03/2016 

 

45 of 47

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/


 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
Tuesday, March 22, 2016                                                                                                     City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                                            16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
Note:  A Study Session is scheduled from 6:00 to 7:00 p.m. 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

• Sexual Assault Awareness Month Proclamation – Mary Ellen Stone, King County Sexual Assault 
Resource Center (KCSARC) 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, not 
the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes per 
speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  March 8, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes (Scott)  
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson)  
C-3. Approve Parametrix Professional Services Agreement (Hart) 
C-4. Approve Brickman Group Street Sweeping Contract Amendment No. 1 (Vondran) 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS 

• Human Services Chair Fran McGregor:  March 10 meeting. 
• Parks & Recreation Chair Laura Morrissey:  March 12 playground tour and March 16 meeting. 
• Planning Chair Bill Judd:  March 17 meeting; March 3 meeting canceled. 
• Arts Chair Lesli Cohan:  March 10 meeting. 
• PRePAC Chair Jennifer Harjehausen:  February 24 meeting. 
• Economic Development Council Co-Chair Jeff Wagner:  February 25 meeting.  

 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Consider Appointments to Human Services Commission ( Council) 
2. Consider Resolution Declaring Comprehensive Plan in Conformance with Development 

Regulations and Critical Areas Ordinance (Hart) 
3. Consider Ordinance on Bond Public Offering (Hendrickson) 
4. Approve Skate Park Renovation Design (Feser) 
5. Presentation of 2016 Year End Financials (Hendrickson) 

 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 

Draft 
as of 3/03/2016 

 

46 of 47

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/


 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – if needed 
 
ADJOURN 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400). 
 
 

47 of 47


	03-08-2016 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday, March 8, 2016                                                                                                       City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	Consent C-1 Green Sheet 03-08-2016 Green Sheet Minutes Approval
	Consent Agenda Item C-1

	Consent C-1 Attachment 1 02.09.2016 Regular Meeting Minutes
	Consent C-1 Attachment 2 02.23.2016 Regular Meeting Minutes
	Consent C-2 Green Sheet 03-08-2016 Voucher Green Sheet
	Consent Agenda Item C-2

	Consent C-2 Attachments
	Item 1 Blue Sheet_Public Hearing Renewal of Rec MJ_8MAR2016
	Item 1 Attachment 1 ORD_Extend_Interim Zoning Regs_Rec MJ_8MAR2016
	Item 1 Attachment 2 Interim Zoning Map with 1000 foot buffers I_502_map_031015_18x24_aerial
	Item 2 Blue Sheet Council Adoption of PROS Plan
	Item 2 Attachment 1 - Exec Summary - PROS Plan Update v2
	Item 2 Attachment 2 - Errata Sheet - PROS Plan Update
	Item 2 Attachment 3 - RESOLUTION_Adopting 2016 PROS Plan Update_9FEB2016
	Item 3 Blue Sheet and Attachment 1 03-08-16  Blue Sheet  City Manager Merit Goals for 2016
	Agenda Item 4

	Future Agenda Cover Sheet for Two Meetings
	03-22-2015 Special Study Session Agenda
	Tuesday, March 22, 2016 – 6:00 p.m.
	ROLL CALL
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	03-22-2016 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday, March 22, 2016                                                                                                     City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	PUBLIC COMMUNICATION




